
AGENDA FOR 
PORT OF ILLAHEE COMMISSION 

Wednesday, February 14TH - 6:30PM 
ZOOM MEETING #715 0997 5823 / Password: Illahee 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Agenda 

*2. The January 10th, 2023 Regular Meeting minutes 
*3. Pay Bills with check numbers 5143 through 5154 totaling $7,750.99 

3. SIGNING OF DOCUMENTS 
Detennine when/how to have at least 2 Commissioners sign th 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 

5. REPORTS/UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Aho/ • I.Grants/Waterfront Access Improvements 
Piccone - Update of project permits and design 

- Any update on the County's filtration pro'ec 
Aho •2 .Illahee Store Project 

- Septic design status 
- PLIA Remediations 

*3. Treasurer's Report as of January 2 General Fund$ 87,707.98 Investments$ 288,621.94 
Good Property Management (GPM) A~t ~total: $ 376,528.92 

Grant Status: , · 
BFP RCO Total= $851,065.00 Amount of R .pa.Ml · ~ Remaining RCO Funds $760,745.02 
ALEA RCO Total= $500,000.00 Amount of RC $73,672. Remaining RCO Funds$426,327.55 
RCFB RCO Total= $191,000.00 Amount ofRCO .. d $0 Remaining RCO Funds $191,000.00 

Last M ..,,.iNKl Below 
Treasw:s's Report a$ December 31, 2023 General Fund $95,864.13 Investments$ 287,854.98 
Good erty Manage· (GPM} Account $199.00 (total: $383,918.11 
4. Reportt 

Aho a.Website thing to rep· 
b. Properties 

5560 Ocean V"~oulevar.ntal - Anything to report? 
5500 Illahee Roa~nta~.• ything to report? 
5507 Illahee Roa~&9tore Property -Anything to report? 
Illahee Road Lot - An ng to report ? 

c. .Dock/Pier - Anything to report ? 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

8. ADJOURN -Regular Meeting -March 13th @ 6:30PM - via ZOOM 
- Kitsap All Ports-April 29th@6:30PM at Port of Brownsville 

•supporting correspondence attached 



Port of lllahee 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 
January 10, 2024 

The Regular Port of lllahee meeting was held virtually through the ZOOM app (meeting id# 
71509975823 / Password: lllahee). Notice of the virtual meeting was posted near the kiosk at the 
head of the pier and on the Port's website - portofillahee.com. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Commission Chairman James Aho called the meeting to order at 6:30PM. Also, in attendance were 
Commissioner Jeffrey Rupert; Commissioner Eric Hall; Adminis or Jennifer Olson; John Buesch 
Roy Barton; John Piccone and Cathy Johnson. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following consent agenda items were approved: January 10th Mee Jgenda; December 13, 2023 
Meeting Minutes; checks numbering 5130 through 5142 totaling $8,5J3.6J 
as outlined in the attached Voucher Approval (motion by Rupert; second by · 

SIGNING OF DOCUENTS 
Commissioners plan to stop by the Port of 1gn documents ~'fhursday 
January 11 , 2024 

Election Of Officers/Job Duties 
There was much discussion amongst the Co · ding the job duties. It was decided: 
Commissioner Hall will be serving as Property MIIMlef 
Commissioner Rupert will be serving as Dock Mar.aer. 
Commissioner Aho will be serving as Chairman/Au /Webmaster. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Jonathan Buesch who Served as a Previous Port Commissioner talked about when he was Property 
Manager, one of ffJe rentals is managed by a property manager, and he will introduce the renter to 
Commissioner Hall so he can estab • a relationship. 

REPORTS/UNFINISHED 8'JSIN -

Waterfront Improvement Project (Docks and Pier only) 
John Piccone with SoundWest Engineering reported on the USACE and WDFW Permit; 
He still has no confirmation from the Tribe that the fish committee has approved the revised design, 
the Corps permit process is pending removal of the Tribes objection. 
County SOAP Permit; The Port requested a 90-day extension to respond to the county request for 
information to provide time to see if the stormwater treatment vault funded by the county needed to 
be included in the permit. At this stage, the Port is unsure if the County stormwater treatment vault 
will occur, John Piccone with SoundWest Engineering plans to resume responding to the County 
request for information. 

Page 1 



RCO Grants 
John Piccone reported on grant status with the RCO (Recreation and Conservation Office) the project 
has been met with several unanticipated delays and obstacles. To date the Port has solved numerous 
issues and made progress solving difficult barriers however, the Port is still behind the original 
schedule. John has requested an extension to the RCO Grant, which he expects the RCO will likely 
approve. John said the Port is $60K behind budget on what he'd like to see at this stage of progress. 
He does believe that $180K is enough to get the Port to the finish line however, it will be important to 
not spend this budget on further ancillary items (such as stormwater treatment, design revisions and 
negotiations, extensive meetings with County about ROW( Right of Way) improvements. 
Commissioner Aho has suggested that John prepare a budget amendment for the on-call task to 
continue assisting with these items if/when needed b4t not impacting the grant budget further. John 
plans to prepare that for approval at either the Febr or March meeting. Currently, the on-call task 
is well under budget as it was approved for anti · items through the end of 2022 and there is still 
approx. $25K remaining and unused. 

Waterfront Improvement Project (Upland) 
John Piccone continued his report regarding he Septic: s Septic has completed their report 
indicating that with some repair the existing ~eptic&Ystem caQ used for the store. 

Commissioner Aho and John Pi.cG ne have had several discussi with Kitsap County stormwater 
group regarding the possi · nty funded treatment facmty in the Ports upper parking lot. The 
County did confirm that thatthey hav t aside a $900,000 budget for this purpose however, the port 
still has not been able to get a firm col)fmnation as to how they would like to spend the money to 
incorporate a treatment system· .the Pois planned project. 

John Piccone cootinued his report ,..,-ding PL Af., . er additional discussion with PLIA and their 
consultant, the consultant agreed to e ·te drilling near the dock suggesting that the additional cost 
to expedite this work was approx-:: $8,000 jhat the previously planned work was estimated at 
approx. $20,000 for a total cost of approx. $28,000. He expected PUA to pay the $20K and the Port 
to pay the $8k howeve'I PUA is suggesting a 50/50 split where the Port would pay approx. $14K. 
John recommends after further discussion with the PLIA consultant, is for the Port to separately pay 
them to prepare a contaminated materials management plan (CMMP) based on the information they 
already have rather than spending $14K on 50% of a new well. The cost is expected to be 
significantly less and well under the $10K amount approved at the December meeting. John Piccone 
believes the Port can include that plan in the waterfront bid documents and make provisions for the 
possibility of handling contaminated soils in that fashion instead of participating in the cost of drilling 
the well. 

Page2 



Commissioner Aho and John Piccone have had discussion with PUA and they understand that the 
Port would like to pay for and install a septic holding tank (to be used as a reserve drain field) when 
the clean-up construction work takes place. Currently, PUA and their consultant are hoping to see the 
clean-up work occur this coming summer. 

Pile Replacement Project 
John Continued his report with the Pile Replacement Project; 
Permits; The project is currently fully permitted. 
Design; Only the inspection and a preliminary design concept has been completed and the Port is 
waiting for confirmation from the Tribe before proceeding with ngineering design in conjunction 
with finalizing the float and pier renovation design. 
Grant and Contract Status; No grant funds have been exIB!ICIEld to date and the grant contract is 
currently set to complete work by June of 2025. Currentfy~ e P €toes not have a task approved to 
begin final engineering and bidding but John would like to have thal-• place as soon as the Port is 
ready to move forward so the work can be included with pier and float vation bids as soon as 
possible. 
Anticipated Schedule; The current assumption is tha this schedule will coin with the pier and float 
work and occur as a single bidding and construction phase. 

Treasurer's Report as of December 31, 2023 General Fund ."'.13 lnvesbnents $287,854.98 Good 
Property Management (GPM) Account $199.GO (total:tff3,918.11 
Grant Status: 
BFP RCO Share Total = $881,065.00 Remaining CO Balance $669,761.40 
ALEA RCO Share Total= $500,000.00 Remar.-,RCO Balance $392,241.38 
RCFB RCO Share Total= $191,000.00 Remainr,.g RCO Balance $191,000.00 

Reports 

Website 
Commissione t all perfnent reports to the Port of lllahee website. 
Properties 
5560 Oceanview Bl~ 
Nothing to Report ~- , 
5500 lllahee Road- lllahee !Pilf: , 
John Buesch will take Comm1-oner Hall to Introduce him so they can establish a working 
relationship. 
5507 lllahee Road / lllahee Store Property 
Nothing to Report. 
lllahee Road lot 
Nothing to report. 
Dock/Pier 
Commissioner Rupert mentioned that some signage in the Port parking lot might need to be 
replaced in the near future . 

Page 3 



New Business 
Commissioner Aho discussed the Bathymetric Survey results: There are 138 tire-clumps each tire 
clump has 12-28 tires that make up a clump. Serco and Wav-C will perform a test sometime in July 
2024, they will have Divers from the Kitsap Search and Rescue team remove 3 clumps to test out the 
turbidity of the water. 

Resolution 2024-01 Establishing the Port of lllahee meeting schedule for 2024. 
Commissioner Hall made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-01 
(motion by Hall; second Rupert by all in favor). 

Resolution 2024-02 MRSC ROSTERS SMALL PUBLIC w__._, CONSUL TANT AND VENDOR 
; 

ROSTERS REOLUTION. Commissioner made a motion t ve Resolution 2024-02 
(motion by Rupert; second Hall by all in favor). 

Resolution 2024-03 Stormwater Memorandum of Understanding 
(motion by Rupert; second Hall by all in favor). 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Authorization 

There was some discussion from the P, - · about the Port using the MRSC da t>ase and what 
happens to the small businesses, are th , • pushed out ? The Administrator responded that 
joining the MRSC is free to the businesse te9atall86~ of size and she will reach out to small 
businesses that the Port has worked with, like-All L . · aintenance and help them get signed up 

' through the MRSC. 

ADJOURN 
At 8:05PM the mediifl-'.io,urned (motion by lbl/Jert; s 
Next regular m 'Feb ·· .14, 2024@6:30pm-
Kitsap All Porfs nuary 29, 20?,f{i.6:30pm 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Commissioner 

Page4 



INTERIM VOUCHER APPROVAL 
We, the undersigned Board of Commissioners of the Port of lllahee, Kitsap County, Washington, 

do hereby certify that the merchandise and/or services hereinafter specified have been received 

and that the vouchers listed below are approved for payment in the amount of $7,750.99 
and from the General Fund, this 14TH day of February 2024 

Port Auditor Port Commissioner 

Port Commissioner 

Number Name Amount 
5143 ___ ERic L~ Hall - ------------------------------------------------- - 384.00 

5144 JAMES AHO 384.00 
5145 JEFFREYS. RUPERT 384.00 
5146 NORTH PERRY AVENUE WATER DISTRICT 62.22 
5147 BANK OF AMERICA 17.031 

5148 CASCADE NATURAL GAS 3.69 
5149 HONEY BUCKET 271 .00 
5150 PORT OF SILVERDALE 750.00 
5151 PUGET SOUND ENERGY 396.71 
5152 SOUNDWEST ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 4,680.50 
5153 WASHINGTON PUBLIC PORTS ASSOCIATION 300.00 
5154 WASTE MANAGEMENT 117.84 



4:34 PM 

02/08/24 

ILLAHEE Port District No. 6 
Reconciliation Summary 

88712 - GENERAL FUND, Period Ending 01/31/2024 

Beginning Balance 
Cleared Transactions 

Checks and Payments - 31 items 
Deposits and Credits - 4 items 

Total Cleared Transactions 

Cleared Balance 

Register Balance as of 01/31/2024 

New Transactions 
Deposits and Credits - 1 item 

Total New Transactions 

Ending Balance 

Jan 31, 24 

-22,257.24 
4,310.30 

-17,946.94 

1,500.00 

1,500.00 

105,654.92 

87,707.98 

87 ,707.98 

89,207.98 

Page 1 



4:36 PM 

02/08/24 

ILLAHEE Port District No. 6 
Reconciliation Summary 

INVESTMENT POOL, Period Ending 01/31/2024 

Jan 31, 24 

Beginning Balance 
Cleared Transactions 

Deposits and Credits - 1 item 

Total Cleared Transactions 

Cleared Balance 

Register Balance as of 01/31/2024 

Ending Balance 

766.96 

766.96 

287,854.98 

288,621.94 

288,621 .94 

288,621 .94 

Page 1 



Beginning Balance Date 

Treasurer's Summary Report 
For 2024 - Jan 

1/1/2024 

Fund: FD00712 Port/lllahee General 

Cash 
Beginning Cash Balance 
1182:lnvestments 
Purchased 
3100:Taxes 

3600:Miscellaneous 
Revenues 
5890:Custodial Activi · 
Total Cash 

3110.1 O - Real and Personal 
Property Taxes 

10.11 - Investment Interest 

5890.40 - Warrants Issued 

Ca99. /0 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

95,864.13 
0.00 766.96 -766.96 -766.96 

357.48 0.00 357.48 357.48 

766.96 0.00 766.96 766.96 

0.00 8,513.63 -8,513.63 -8,513.63 
1,124.44 9,280.59 -8, 156.15 87,707.98 



TREAS RPT - Summa Cash Report - Investments & Debt Service 
Beginning Balance Date 1/1/2024 

( 

Treasurer's Summary Report 
For 2024 - Jan 
Fund: FD00712 Port/lllahee General 

Investments 
Beginning Investment Balance 
1182:lnvestments Purchased 
Total Investments 

Debt Service 

0.00 
0.00 

766.96 
766.96 

0.00 
0.00 

766.96 
766.96 

287,854.98 
766.96 

288,621 .94 



-- -

-~ HomP. Menu • Sponsor R?so1Hces • lielo • -,p,~ -1 1~.,;i\,•nc . 

PROJECT DETAILS 
.Plqed Brief 

Prope,ties 

Attachmenls 

Sponsor Match 

Billings 

Prognl81l/Final Reports 

Snapshot 

OPTIONS 

Enter Progress/Final Report 

Email Grant Manager 

PRISM Support 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

Appllcallon Wizard 

ApplcationReport 

Grant Mtnlger Convnents Rpl 

DASHBOARDS 

8lling Dashboards 

GD1Dflmjlclt: 

I 100 I 
ei.tiJc:r.,i 

I loo J 
Go ID Person: 

I loo) 

PROJECT: 20-2059 DEV, TRANSIENT MOORAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
S:P.<>nsor: Ulahee port of f>rogrwa: Boallng Facillties · Local Status: Ac1iYe 

Projecl Slart Date: 07/19'2021 ~ End Date: 06/30/2025 

BILLINGS 

/1.-na,y al lNlrlg inlotmalion for /he selocfed proiocl. 

D Rele8Nd billings D In Process and Approved billinga O Onlll and Returned bllng& 

BALANCES I Funmig Souroe Balance I 
RCOGrant Sponsor Match AA&E 
Agreement RCO " AgrMmenl aponeor,i. Total AIMunt "' 

~!Total '851,065.00 74.001469% $299,000.00 25.998531 % $1,150,085.00 $180,000.00 18.555500 % 

Paid lo Date $90,319.98 10.612583% $31,731.62 10.612583% $122,051.60 $75,211.46 41.780000 % 

Retained to Dale $0.00 0.000000% $0.00 

REMAINING BALANCE $760,745.02 89.387417 % $267,268.38 89.387417 " $1,028,013.40 $104,788.54 58210000 % 

Planned Relalnege $85,106.50 (10.00000000%) Maleh Bank $0.00 

Retelnege Trigger $765,958.50 MalchOwed $0.00 

Nlanbefofe.lngs 8 Mv-- Belence $0.00 

Pending Biling D 
ALNNlll'lber(s) 

BILLING HISTORY 

Number of Blllnp: a Export 

Bilingl# 
Blllng Worbltes Approved Payment 

Blllng Period 
Sponsor 8lllng Status 

Dale Properli9s Amount Amount Invoice 
StMix 

Release Dale 
JvJvance 

a 02J09i2024 Worksite #1: Port of llehee $3,991.55 $3,991.SS 1001/2023- 00 In Pr-. Alad, Doran a.-
12/31/2023 

11. 11f01/2023 Wolblll9 , , : Port of llahee $8,200.75 $8,200.76 0Ml1/2023 - 00 Releailed 
09(30/2023 11/08l2023 

II§ 09/05l2023 Worksite #1: Port of llahee $3,252.00 $3,252.00 04l01/2023 - 00 Released 
07/31/2023 09t15/2023 

§ 05/11/2023 Worbile#1: Port of llehee $2,601.05 $2,801.05 01f01/2023 - 00 Released 
03131/2023 05f.W2023 

l4 01/19/'2023 Wol1lsile #1 : Port of llahee $5,493.13 $5,493.13 OM>1/2022 - 00 Relea8ed 
12/31/2022 01/23/2023 

~ 08/11fl022 Wotksite #1: Port of fflahee $11,117.89 $11,117.89 03/01/2022 - 00 Released 
07/31/2022 08fl'1J20'l2 

Totals $90,319.98 $90,311.98 



Number of Blllngs: 8 

BIiiing # 
Blllng Worksltes ApprO'llld Payment 
Date Properties Amount Amount 

tf2 03122/2022 Wor1ulHe #1 : Port ol llahee $8,920.71 $8,920.72 

11 09/13/2021 Worksite #1 : Port of llallN $46,542.88 $46,542.88 

Totals $90,311.111 $90,319.98 

BILLINGS TO DATE 
Use the fillers b6IOw to display billing lnlormalionby bMll,I ocm-. WOlfldeorPfOl)flfty. 

Dteioasect bllings O n Proceaa and ApprO'llld billings Ch-al and Returned billings 

Bllng # I All vj 
Works11e jMI vj 
Property I._M_1 _____________ ........ 1, ,-R-elreltl----, 

BIiied 

Biling Period 

()9,'()1/2021 -

03/21/2022 

03/01/2020 -

08/31/2021 

Colt Category 
Agreement 

Total Expenditures Donations Other Funds Tolal 

Export 

Sponsor 
Suffix 

BIiiing Status 
Advance 

Invoice Release Date 

00 Released 

03/2Bl2022 

00 Released 

09123/2021 



- --

~'~ Home Menu • Sponsor Resources • e::r • n-.ert-;.t l",t,:-1, ~(! . 

PROJECT DETAILS 

Project Brief 

Properties 

Attachments 

Sponsor Match 

Billings 

Progress/Final Reports 

Snapshot 

OPTIONS 

EnlBr Progress/Final Report 

Emai Gm Manager 

PRISM Support 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

Application Wizard 

Application Report 

Grant Manager Comments Rpt 

DASHBOARDS 

Billing Dashboards 

GDt>~ 

100 I 
Ge>fDQu: 

Go ID Person: 

-- -

PROJEC"r. 20-1711 DEV, PORT OF ILLAHEE WATERFRONT ACCESS IMPROVEMENTS 
Sponsor; l!ll)ea Pqt at ~~Lands Enhancement Acct Slatus: Actl¥e 

Pqact Slalt.0.: 07n9/2021 ~t End Date: 06/30/2025 

BILLINGS 
A soowna,y of billing lnfonnallon for Ille Sll'8cfed fJIO/ed. 

0 Releaaed billings O In Process and Approved billings 0 Dndl and Returned bangs I Refmsh j 

BALANCES I Funding Source Balance j 
RCOGrant 8ponsorMatch AA&E 
Agreement RCO% AgrMIMnt Sponsor% Total Amount % 

Agreement Total $500,000.00 61 .576355% $312,000.00 38.423645% $812,000.00 $130,000.00 19.061600% 

Paid to Date $73,672.45 14.734490% $45,971.61 14.734490% $119,644.06 $74,659.65 57.430000% 

Relalned to Dale $0.00 0.000000% $0.00 

REMAINING BALANCE $426,327.55 65.265510% $266,028.39 85.265510% $892,355.94 $55,340.35 42.560000% 

Planned Retalnage $50,000.00 (10.00000000%) MatdlBenk $0.00 

Relalnage Trigger $450,000.00 Matcho-1 $0.00 

Number of Biltngs 8 Advance Balance $0.00 

Pending Blling □ 
Al.N Nurnber(a) 

BILLING HISTORY 

Number of Blllnga: 8 Export 

Billng# 
Blllng Worlcaites ApprOY8d f>l¥nent Blllng Period 

Sponsor Blling Status 

Dale Properties Amount Amount lnYOlce 
Suffix 

Release Dale 
Advance 

11B 0210912024 Worksile •1. Port of llal1N $3,321.35 $3,321.35 1001/2023- 00 In Process A9c:al, Doiwi ~ 
12'01/2023 

11. 11/01/2023 Wootalle 11: Port of llahee 16,823.81 $6,823.82 OM>1/2023 - 00 RelBaNd 

OW30l2023 11'°9t2023 

ii§ 09l05/2023 Worksile 11: Port of llahee $2,705..97 $2.705.96 04/01/2023 . 00 ~ 

07/31/2023 09/15/2023 

§ 05/11/2023 Wolksile #1: Pori of llahee $2,330.74 $2,330.74 01,'1)1/2023- 00 Relell8ed 
03/31/2023 05/24/2023 

tl:1 01/19'2023 Workslle #1: Port of llalMe $4,570.81 $4.570.81 OM)1/2022- 00 Reie.-1 
12/31/2022 01/23f2023 

tta 08/11/2022 Wo111sl1e jl1: Port of llahee $19.251.16 $9,251.16 03101/2022 • 00 Releesed 

07/31/2022 Ol6l'l2l2lY22 

Totals $73,a72M $7S,172A5 



- -

~ horn,, . • ~PoOL ;:, $ . ., • -·•~'tH. "a~,,~c .. 

PR\JJECT DETAILS 

Project Brief 

Properties 

Allachments 

Sponsor Match 

Bilings 

Progress/Fine! Reports 

Snapshot 

OPTIONS 

Enter Progress/F11181 Rapc,t 

Email Grant Manager 

PRISM Support 

APPLICATION DETAILS 

Application Wizard 

Application Report 

Grant Manager CorMl8nts Rpt 

DASHBOARDS 

Biting Dashboards 

Go Prajllc:t· 

f 
GO 

Go lo Person: 

PROJECT: 22-2038 DEV, PORT OF ILLAHEE PUBLIC PIER PILE REPLACEMENT 
§DOIISOC IPblt port of Plognn: Boallng F.._ • loca Status: Adlve 

Piqad s.tDat: 07I01/2023 ~ End Date: 06l30l2025 

BILLINGS 
A~ albililg lnhmatllon lot the seleded p,ujecf. 

0 Re1easec1 i,a11ngs D 1n Process anc1 Approved billings ODnll ar-.t Returned bHngs 

BALANCES 

AgreMlent Total 

Paid to Date 

Retained lo Dale 

REMAINING BALANCE 

Planned Relalnage 

Retalnage Tt1gger 

Nl.lllber ot Billinga 

Pending Biling 

BILLING HISTORY 

Number of Blllnga: 0 

RCOGrant 

AgreMMnt RCO% 

$191,000.00 74.901961 % 

$0.00 0.000000% 

$0.00 0.000000% 

$0.00 0.000000% 

$0.00 (0.00000000%) 

$0.00 

0 

□ 

lfundilgSolaa:Balence l 
Sponsor Mldch 

Aer--' Sponeor% Total 

$64,000.00 25.098039 % $255,000.00 

$0.00 0.000000" $0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 0.000000" $255,000.00 

Match Bank $0.00 

MalchOwed $0.00 

/vJvtll('Ol Balance $0.00 

ALN lullbef(s) 

AA&E 

Amount 

$42,500.00 

$0.00 

$42,500.00 

"' 
20.000000 % 

0.000000% 

100.000000 % 

BINlng # 
BIiiing 

Date 

Wol1<slles 
Proper1ies 

Approved Amoln 

$0.00 

Payment Amount Bllng Period 

$0.DD 

Sponeor Invoice Suffix 
Billing S1alus 

Release Dale 

BILLINGS TO DATE 
Use lhe fillers bdow lo dsplay lliltlg infwmalion by bi/Mg number; Mnsie «p,ope,fy. 

~ blllnga [}., Prooeea and Approved biarigs Ch.ft and Retimed ~ 

Billing# 

Worlt&m 

·' 

Export 

Advance 



Projects Status Summary Memorandum 

Date: Janaury 10, 2024 

To: Port of lllahee Board of Commissioners 

From: John Piccone, P.E., Soundwest Engineering Assoc. 

Projects Status Summary Subject: 

Waterfront Improvement Project 

• USACE and WDFW Permit; Still no confirmation from the Tribe that the fish committee has 

approved the revised design, the Corps permit process is pending removal of the Tribes 

objection. The WDFW HPA permit will be submitted per the revised design as soon as the Tribe 

provides official agreement. 

• County SOAP Permit; We requested a 90-day extension to respond to the county request for 

information to provide a little time to see if the stormwater treatment vault funded by the 

county needed to be included in the permit. At this stage, since we are still unsure if the County 

stormwater treatment vault will occur, I plan to resume responding to the County request for 

information. The response to the information request is already 90% prepared and we will be 

submitting that in January. My expectation is that it will take some time for discussion with the 

county planners since they will need to evaluate deviations from standard protocol just as they 

did with the shoreline permit. 

• Kitsap County Stormwater Treatment; Jim and I have had several discussions and emails with 

Kitsap County stormwater group regarding the possibility of a county funded treatment facility 

in the Ports upper parking lot. The County did confirm that that they have set aside a $900,000 

budget for this purpose however, we still have not been able to get a firm confirmation as to 

how they would like to spend the money to incorporate a treatment system into our planned 

project. Based on recent conversations I'm expecting this question to be resolved soon and in 

the meantime planning to forge ahead where possible on other pending items. 

• Site Contamination and PLIA coordination; After additional discussion with PLIA and their 

consultant, the consultant agreed to expedite drilling near the dock suggesting that the 

additional cost to expedite this work was approx. $8,000 and that the previously planned work 

was estimated at approx. $20,000 for a total cost of approx. $28,000. We expected PLIA to pay 

the $20K and the Port to pay the $8k however, PLIA is suggesting a 50/50 split where the Port 

would pay approx. $14K. My recommendation after further discussion with the PLIA consultant 

is for the Port to separately pay them to prepare a contaminated materials management plan 

(CMMP) based on the information they already have rather than spending $14K on 50% of a 

new well. The cost is expected to be significantly less and well under the $10K amount 

approved at the December meeting. I believe we can include that plan in the waterfront bid 

documents and make provisions for the possibility of handling contaminated soils in that fashion 

instead of participating in the cost of drilling the well. 

SOUND WEST Page 1 of 4 

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 



Projects Status Summary Memorandum 

• Anticipated Schedule; This still remains somewhat of an unknown as there are remaining items 

out of our control (such as afore mentioned permits and Suquamish formal decision) that need 

to be resolved prior to finalizing the bid documents and awarding the project to a construction 

contractor. I'm still maintaining the goal of putting the project out to bid this year in later 

summer or early fall at this stage and will continue to update Jim and the Board as these items 

progress. 

• RCO Grant and Contract Status; As everyone is aware, the project has met with several 

unanticipated delays and obstacles including those items discussed above. To date we have 

solved numerous issues and made progress solving difficult barriers however, we are still behind 

the original schedule. I have requested an extension to the RCO grant through June of 2025 

which I expect RCO will very likely approve. Additionally, we have spent approx. $240K of the 

$410K budget RCO provided for Engineering, Admin, and Permits which leaves approx. $180K to 

finish engineering and permitting, conduct bidding, and manage the construction process. This 

puts us approx. $60K behind what I'd like to see at this stage of progress and knowing what we 

do now about items not yet resolved. I do believe that $180K is enough to get us to the finish 

line however, it will be important to not spend this budget on further ancillary items (such as 

stormwater treatment, design revisions and negotiations, extensive meetings with County about 

ROW improvements, etc.). Since most of these ancillary items are necessary to keep the 

project(s) moving forward Jim has suggested that I prepare a budget amendment for the on-call 

task to continue assisting with these items if/when needed but not impacting the grant budget 

further. I planned to prepare that for approval at either the February or March meeting. 

Currently, the on-call task is well under budget as it was approved for anticipated items through 

the end of 2022 and there is still approx. $25K remaining and unused. 

Pile Replacement Project 

• Permits; The project is currently fully permitted. 

• Design; Only the inspection and a preliminary design concept has been completed and we are 

waiting for confirmation from the Tribe before proceeding with the engineering design in 

conjunction with finalizing the float and pier renovation design. 

• Grant and Contract Status; No grant funds have been expended to date and the grant contract 

is currently set to complete work by June of 2025. Currently, we do not have a task approved to 

begin final engineering and bidding but I would like to have that in place as soon as we are 

ready to move forward so the work can be included with pier and float renovation bids as soon 

as possible. 

• Anticipated Schedule; The current assumption is that this schedule will coincide with the pier 

and float work and occur as a single bidding and construction phase. 

SOUND WEST Page 2 of 4 

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 



Projects Status Summary Memorandum 

Store Clean-up & Renovation 

• Septic; Dave's Septic has completed their report indicating that with some repair the existing 

septic system can be used for the store. I believe the Commissioners all have a copy of that 

report. 

• PUA; Jim and I have had discussion with PUA and they understand that the Port would like to 

pay for and install a septic holding tank (to be used as a reserve drainfield) when the clean-up 

construction work takes place. Currently, PUA and their consultant are hoping to see the clean

up work occur this coming summer. 

Action Items: 

• Jim and John to confirm if Kitsap County will provide an MOU for the stormwater treatment 

facility plans, including full reimbursement to the Port, and if so any potential delays that may 

result due to this joint project. If not, I presume the Port will want to move forward without 

further consideration of the joint stormwater project. We will endeavor to finalize this question 

no later than the February board meeting. 

• Contract with the PUA consultant to prepare a CMMP under the assumption that it will cost less 

than the $10K approved for well drilling. 

• Continue to periodically check in with Tribe and Corps to monitor status and anticipated 

timeframe to issue permit. 

• Provide responses to the County SDAP permit reviewers, then resolve the setback variance 

request and ROW permit requirements they are asking for so this permit can be finalized 

regardless of the County stormwater treatment potential project component. 

SOUND WEST Page 3 of 4 

ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 



Projects Status Summary 

Permit Status Summary- All Projects 

Waterfront Access Project 

Permit Submittal Date 

SSDP 8-19-21 

HPA Delayed 

NWP 8-17-21 

SOAP 2-7-23 

BP Anticipated by 
contractor in 2024 

ROW Anticipated by 
contractor In 2024 

FIRE Anticipated In 2024 

Permit Issued Permit Status 

8-4-22 Complete. SSDP staff report 

notice of decision received. 

- Submittal of permit application 

pending resolution with 

Suquamish Tribe. 

Delayed Finalization of permit review 

pending resolution with 

Suquamlsh Tribe. 

- Submittal of permit application 

complete, review comments 

received 8/31/23, response 

pending County stormwater. 

- Submittal to follow SOAP 

- Submittal to follow SOAP 

- Submittal to follow SOAP 

SSDP - SUbstantlal Shoreline Development Permit (Kitsap County) 
HPA- Hydraulic Project Approval (WDFW) 
NWP - Nationwide Permit 3 (USACE) 
BP - Building Permit (Kitsap County) 
ROW - Right of Way (Kitsap County) 
Fire - Fire Code Permit (Kitsap County) 

PIie Replacement Project 

Permit Submittal Date Permit Issued Permit Status 

Shoreline 9-22-22 2/15/23 Staff Report Issue, Pending 14 

Exemption day appeal period ending 

2/15/23 

NWP3 9-22-22 11-21-22 Complete. Permit issued by 

USACE. 

HPA 2020 2/14/20 Maintenance permit, expires 
2/12/25 

SOUND WEST 
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES 

Memorandum 

Design Status 

60% Design Complete and 

submitted for permit. 

Pending resolution with 

Suquamish Tribe. 

Pending resolution with 

Suquamish Tribe. 

9S% Design Complete for 

upland elements only to 

submit SOAP. 

Design Status 

30% Design Completed for 

Permit submittal. 

30% Design Completed for 

Permit submittal. 

-

Page 4 of 4 


